
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

July 14, 2014 
5:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Joe Comer, Horizon Church 
4. Pledge Of Allegiance  
5. Announcements, Candidate and Guest Recognition 
6. City Manager’s Report 
7. Councilors’ Reports  
8. Introduction – Sheila Phillips, Vestavia Hills Board of Education 
9. Presentation – Jefferson-Blount-St. Clair Mental Health Authority – James Crego 
10. Presentation – Update On Recreational Lighting - Trane 
11. Approval of Minutes – June 19, 2014 (Work Session) and June 23, 2014 (Regular 

Meeting) 

Old Business  

12. Ordinance Number 2502 – An Ordinance To Amend Chapter 8 Of The Vestavia Hills 
Code Of Ordinances, Republished 2014 Entitled “Licenses And Business Regulations” 
To Add An Article To Establish A NAICS Code, Operating Standards And Definitions 
For Mobile Food Units Operating Within The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama And To 
Provide For Penalties For Violation Thereof  (public hearing)  

New Business  

13. Resolution Number 4603 - A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Thermal Imaging Cameras 
For The Vestavia Hills Fire Department 

14. Resolution Number 4604 - A Resolution Amending Resolution Number 4599 To 
Redirect Library Grant Funding For Construction Of A Parking Lot Adjacent To The 
Library In The Forest 

 

 



New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

15. Resolution Number 4606 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager And Mayor To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With The Vestavia Hills Board Of Education For 
Development Of The School Parcel At Patchwork Farms  (public hearing) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

16. Resolution Number 4605 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Agreement With Goodwyn Mills And Cawood For Preliminary Geotechnical 
Work At Wald Park  (public hearing) 

17. Ordinance Number 2503 – Rezoning – 1836 Shades Crest Road; Rezoning From 
Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Compatible Zoning For Annexation; 
Bradshaw Family, LLC; Michael Wedgworth, Representing  (public hearing) 

18. Ordinance Number 2504 – Conditional Use Approval – 2564 Altadena Road; Conditional 
Use Approval To Allow Up To 12 Urban Hens; Will Roth, Owner  (public hearing) 

19. Ordinance Number 2505 – Rezoning – 3790 Poe Drive; Lots 5 And A Portion Of Lot 4, 
Block 3, Glass 3rd Addition To New Merkle; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-4 To 
Vestavia Hills R-9; Overton Investments, LLC  (public hearing) 

20. Ordinance Number 2506 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 4668 Caldwell Mill Road; 
Layne And Amy Savoie, Owners  (public hearing) 

21. Ordinance Number 2507 – Rezoning – 4668 Caldwell Mill Road; Rezoning From 
Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Layne 
And Amy Savoie, Owners  (public hearing) 

22. Ordinance Number 2508 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2640 Dolly Ridge Road; 
Willard And Ruth Bowers, Owner  (public hearing) 

23. Ordinance Number 2509 – Rezoning – 2640 Dolly Ridge Road; Rezone From Jefferson 
County E-1 To Vestavia Hills E-2; Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Willard And 
Ruth Bowers, Owners  (public hearing) 

24. Ordinance Number 2510 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2760 Altadena Lake Drive; Lot 
3, Block 5, First Addition, Altadena Valley Fifth Sector; Lynn R. Smitherman, Trustee, 
Owner  (public hearing) 

25. Ordinance Number 2511 – Rezoning – 2760 Altadena Lake Drive; Lot 3, Block 5, First 
Addition, Altadena Valley Fifth Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 To Vestavia 
Hills R-2; Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Lynn Smitherman, Trustee, Owner  
(public hearing) 



26. Ordinance Number 2512 – 90-Day Final – 3700 Altadena Circle; Lot 8, Ridge Forest; 
Ralph And Alison McCall, Owners  (public hearing) 

27. Ordinance Number 2513 – Rezoning – 3700 Altadena Circle; Lot 8 Ridge Forest; Rezone 
From Jefferson County A-1 To Vestavia Hills A; Compatible Zoning For Annexation; 
Ralph And Alison McCall, Owners  (public hearing) 

28. Ordinance Number 2514 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3548 Valley Circle; Lot 12, 
Block 3, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Benjamin And Carol Byrket, Owners  (public 
hearing) 

29. Ordinance Number 2515 – Rezoning – 3548 Valley Circle; Lot 12, Block 3, Dolly Ridge 
Estates 2nd Add; Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 To Vestavia Hills R-2; Benjamin 
And Carol Byrket, Owners  (public hearing) 

30. Ordinance Number 2516 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2400 Rocky Ridge Road; Lot 
105, Buckhead, 4th Sector; Michael And Donya Rumore  (public hearing) 

31. Ordinance Number 2517 – Rezoning – 2400 Rocky Ridge Road; Lot 105, Buckhead, 4th 
Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Compatible Zoning 
For Annexation; Michael And Donya Rumore, Owners  (public hearing) 

32. Ordinance Number 2518 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2835 Acton Road; Lot 1, Adams 
Resurvey; Brantley P. Bowden, Owner  (public hearing) 

33. Ordinance Number 2519 – Rezoning – 2835 Acton Road; Lot 1, Adams Resurvey; 
Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 To Vestavia Hills R-2; Compatible Zoning For 
Annexation; Brantley P. Bowden, Owner  (public hearing) 

34. Ordinance Number 2520 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2468 Kenvil Circle; Lot 42, 
Buckhead, 2nd Sector; Tara Adams, Owner  (public hearing) 

35. Ordinance Number 2521 – Rezoning – 2568 Kenvil Circle; Lot 42, Buckhead, 2nd Sector; 
Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Tara Adams, Owner  (public 
hearing) 

36. Citizens Comments  
37. Executive Session 
38. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

MINUTES 
 

JUNE 19, 2014 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regularly scheduled work session on 
this date at 5:00 PM following posting/publishing pursuant to Alabama law.  The Mayor 
called the work session to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      John Henley 
      George Pierce 
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 

Wendy Appling, Deputy City Clerk 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
 
 The Mayor welcomed the persons in attendance. 
 
 Mr. Doug Neil gave an update on the Northport project at Patchwork Farms. 
 

Mr. Downes gave an update on upcoming projects, developments, etc., and 
briefed the Council on various issues. 
 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:00 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
Attested by: 
 
 
 
Wendy Appling 
Deputy City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2014, 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

JUNE 23, 2014 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr.  

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce  
John Henley 

      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Tim Holcomb, Asst. Police Chief 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Marvin Green, Asst. Fire Chief, Operations 
 
 Invocation was given by John Turner, Shades Mountain Baptist Church.  Will 
Wortheimer, Boy Scout Troop 76, led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION 
 

• Steve Ammons stated that he is running for Jefferson County Tax Collector and 
asked for support in the November general election. 

 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

• Mr. Downes stated that the revenue estimates for the tag renewals have remained 
consistent enough .for him to recommend additional personnel for the Finance 
Department to handle the additional duties this task has brought to them.  He 
stated there is a Resolution on the agenda tonight to allow him to hire someone as 
soon as possible. 

• Mr. Downes stated that the City is focusing on maintenance to the City park 
facilities and fields, etc.  He stated that they have begun a formal evaluation 
process and will retain outside professional consultation on the best and most 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2014, 

Page 2 
 

efficient ways to keep the park facilities and fields in good repair.  He indicated 
that he is working with the Public Services Director to address the needs of the 
department in regard to the required maintenance. 

 
PROCLAMATION 

 
 The Mayor presented a proclamation designating July 13, 2014 as “Bruster’s Ice 
Cream Day” and congratulating Bruster’s Ice Cream on 25 years of ice cream business.  
Mr. Downes read the proclamation. 
 
 Linda Parker of Brusters accepted the Proclamation and invited everyone to their 
birthday party on July 13, 2014. 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor presented a proclamation designating the week of June 22-28, 2014, 
as “Municipal Clerk’s Week” in honor of Municipal Clerks within the state.  Mr. Downes 
read the proclamation and presented it to Municipal Clerk, Rebecca Leavings.   
 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• Mayor Zaragoza announced the groundbreaking ceremony for the new City Hall 
facility will be held on the site on June 25, 2014 at 9 AM.  Everyone is invited to 
attend. 

• Mr. Henley stated that the new Superintendent of Education, Shelia Phillips, is 
scheduled to officially begin her term of employment on August 1, 2014. 

• Mr. Pierce announced that the 33rd annual I Love America Day sponsored by the 
Chamber of Commerce will be held Wednesday, July 2, 2014 with free 
swimming, activities for the kids and the movie “Frozen” that evening. 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Turner presented the financial reports for month ending May 2014.  He read 
and explained the balances. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of June 9, 2014 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval.   
 
 The Mayor stated that there were two corrections to change “Mayor Pro-Tem” to 
“Mayor”.  He opened the floor for a motion. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2014, 

Page 3 
 

MOTION Motion to amend the minutes to read “Mayor” instead of “Mayor Pro-
Tem” was by Mr. Pierce.  Second was by Mr. Ammons.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the meeting of June 

9, 2014 (Regular Meeting) and approve them as amended was by Mr. 
Henley and second by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2501 
 
Ordinance Number 2501 – Conditional Use Approval – 709 Vestavia Lake Drive; 

Conditional Use Approval For The Purpose Of Raising And/Or 
Harvesting Domestic Hens With Restrictions; Andy And Larue 
Lockhart  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2501 was by Mr. Sharp and second 

was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this is a request for the ability to raise chickens in a 
residential area.  He stated that this was recommended by the Planning Commission with 
several conditions which are written into the Ordinance.  He read over the conditions. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked why the owner settled on 6 chickens. 
 
 Andy and Larue Lockhart, petitioners, were present in regard to this request. 
 
 Mr. Lockhart explained that the chicken coop they wish to purchase is made for 6 
hens and that’s the number they felt comfortable with keeping. 
 
 Discussion ensued concerning the number of eggs expected, prior experience in 
raising this type of animal, security against predators, and why the Commission 
recommendation was not unanimous. 
 
 Mr. Sharp stated that two of the Commission members just felt this was not a 
good use for residential areas. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2014, 

Page 4 
 

 Mr. Ammons offered an amendment that stated if the Lockharts experienced any 
predators that were lured by these chickens, that they would notify the City’s Police 
Department immediately. 
 
 Mr. Lockhart stated that he has no problem with that amendment. 
 
 The Mayor called for the amendment. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend Ordinance Number 2501 to add a 7th condition “that if 

the petitioner should experience problems with predators lured by the 
hens, in such instance the petitioner will contact the City’s Police 
Department immediately” was by Mr. Pierce.  Second was by Mr. Henley.  
Voice vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, asked if the hens would be free-roaming and 
how the waste will be disposed of from the property. 
 
 Mr. Lockhart explained that the animals will be contained in a coop located inside 
of a dog pen with a top so they can’t roam the yard freely.  He explained how he planned 
to keep the area clean and dispose of the waste. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council concerning this request, the Mayor 
closed the floor and asked for the question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 

on Resolution Numbers 4601 and 4602 was by Mr. Ammons.  Second was 
by Mr. Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2014, 

Page 5 
 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4601 

 
Resolution Number 4601 -  A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Construction Of An 

Additional Parking Lot For The Library In The Forest And 
Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And Deliver Any And All 
Documents In Order To Finalize Said Construction  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4601 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this accepts the lowest bid package for construction of the 
additional parking at the Library in the Forest.  He explained the bid results, indicated 
that Veterans was the lowest bid package and how the construction would be expensed.  
He also stated that this Resolution allows the execution of the agreements following the 
approval of the City Attorney. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4602 
 
Resolution Number 4602 -  A Resolution Approving Amending the Fiscal Year 

2013-2014 Budget for Additional Personnel In The Finance 
Department For The City of Vestavia Hills 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4602 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Ammons. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the Resolution allows him to hire a clerk for the Finance 
Department to perform the tag administration duties.  The details of the clerk were 
provided to explain the amendment. 
 
 The Mayor stated that when this process was begun, there was no way to know if 
additional staffing would be needed.  Now it has been proven that there needs to be a 
clerk performing these duties and that the additional income will pay for this clerk. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 23, 2014, 

Page 6 
 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on July 
14, 2014 at 5 PM. 

• Ordinance Number 2502 – An Ordinance To Amend Chapter 8 Of The Vestavia 
Hills Code Of Ordinances, Republished 2014 Entitled “Licenses And Business 
Regulations” To Add An Article To Establish A NAICS Code, Operating 
Standards And Definitions For Mobile Food Units Operating Within The City Of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama And To Provide For Penalties For Violation Thereof  
(public hearing) 

 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
 None. 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. Henley.  

Meeting adjourned at 5:45 PM. 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
 
Attested by: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2502 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2502 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 8 OF THE VESTAVIA HILLS 
CODE OF ORDINANCES, REPUBLISHED 2014 ENTITLED “LICENSES 
AND BUSINESS REGULATIONS” TO ADD AN ARTICLE TO 
ESTABLISH A NAICS CODE, OPERATING STANDARDS AND 
DEFINITIONS FOR MOBILE FOOD UNITS OPERATING WITHIN THE 
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AND TO PROVIDE FOR 
PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION THEREOF 

 
 WITNESSETH THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2502 WHICH IS CONSIDERED 

AND APPROVED ON THIS THE 14th DAY OF JULY, 2014. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, on April 28, 2014, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills (“City”) 

adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2498 to adopt a Code of Ordinances for the City of 

Vestavia Hills as republished in 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 8 of the Vestavia Hills Code of Ordinance, republished 2014, 

(“City Code”) entitled “Licenses and Business Regulations” sets forth the requirements for 

operation of commercial businesses within the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have determined that establishing standards for 

the operation of Mobile Food Units is intended to promote the public health, safety and welfare 

by amending Article 8 to establish standards and a definition for the operation of Mobile Food 

Units within the City to be detailed as follows: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Chapter 8 of the City’s Code is hereby amended for the addition of the following:  

Article X - Establishing Standards and Definitions for Mobile Food Units 

Section 1.  Definitions. 

  Mobile Food Unit – A self-contained vehicle, trailer or pushcart that 

serves prepared foods or prepares and serves food in various locations of the 

City. 

 Section 2.  Standards and Requirements for Operation. 

1. All Mobile Food Unit operators shall obtain an annual business license 

issued by the City of Vestavia Hills Finance Department prior to 



Ordinance Number 2502 
Page 2 

 
commencing any food sales in the City.  Said license shall be assigned the 

NAICS code 722330 and shall be subject to the Schedule 5A as detailed in 

Section 8-37, License Classifications.  Said license shall be provided for 

both the Mobile Food Unit as well as the commissary from which the food 

is obtained.   

2. In addition to an annual business license all Mobile Food Unit operators 

shall obtain an annual operating permit for each unit to be issued by City 

of Vestavia Hills City Clerk, unless otherwise exempted in this Chapter.  

Permits shall be issued for the period beginning January 1 and ending 

December 31 of each year.  This permit shall be posted in a visible 

location on the Mobile Food Unit at all times while in operation. In order 

to obtain said permit, operators shall submit copies of all required and 

current health department approvals for both commissary and each Mobile 

Food Unit and current City business license.  Applicant shall be 

responsible for having each unit inspected and approved by the City’s Fire 

Marshal prior to issuance of permit. 

3. All Mobile Food Units must be located off the public rights-of-way. 

4. Location and/or operation of all Mobile Food Units shall be only in areas 

and/or districts zoned non-residential. 

5. Mobile Food Unit operators shall have approval of the property owner for 

each location at which the Mobile Food Unit operates.  This approval shall 

be in writing, signed by the property owner and must be made available 

for inspection upon request of any City Official at any time during the 

operation of the Mobile Food Unit. 

6. No Mobile Food Unit shall be allowed to operate in excess of eight (8) 

hours per day; operational meaning food sales (excluding food prep). 

7. No Mobile Food Unit shall be allowed to operate in excess of three (3) 

consecutive days in any one location.  During days of non-operation, the 

Mobile Food Unit and all associated vehicles, etc., must be removed from 

the premises. 



Ordinance Number 2502 
Page 3 

 
8. Hours of operation for all Mobile Food Units shall be limited to 6:00 AM 

to 9:00 PM, local time. 

9. No Mobile Food Unit shall operate on more than two (2) individual sites 

within the City per day. 

10. No more than one (1) Mobile Food Unit shall operate on the same site per 

day unless specially approved festivals, celebrations, etc., and at the 

approval of the City Manager. 

11. Mobile Food Units shall not be located within two hundred (200) feet of 

the main entrance of the nearest restaurant during the restaurant’s posted 

hours of operation.   

12. Mobile Food Units shall be located a minimum of five (5) feet away from 

any fire hydrant, sidewalk, utility boxes, handicap ramps and/or building 

entrances.  

13. Mobile Food Unit operators are responsible for the proper disposal of 

waste and trash associated with the operation.  Operators shall remove all 

waste and trash every 24 hours to maintain the health and safety of the 

public and to prevent any adverse odors.  City trash receptacles shall not 

be used for this purpose.   

14. All associated equipment, including trash receptacles, must be located 

within three (3) feet of the Mobile Food Unit. 

15. No fire lanes, vehicular access ways or pedestrian walkways may be 

obstructed or encroached upon by the Mobile Food Unit. 

16. No amplified microphones or bull horns, no flashing lights or any other 

distraction shall be permitted as a part of the Mobile Food Unit operation. 

17. Mobile Food Units shall not occupy parking spaces required to fulfill the 

minimum requirements of a principal use, unless the hours of operation of 

the principal use do not coincide with those of the Mobile Food Unit 

except at the approval of the Zoning Official. 

18. Signage is limited to signage located on Mobile Food Unit.  No portable 

signage is allowed. 

 



Ordinance Number 2502 
Page 4 

 
 Section 3.  Penalties. 

  Any person violating any provision of this article may be issued a citation by the 

Vestavia Hills Police Department or at the request of the Finance Director or his 

designee be issued a summons and shall be required to appear in the Vestavia Hills 

Municipal Court.  Upon conviction, any person shall be subject to any fines and other 

applicable court costs which may be assessed by the Vestavia Hills Municipal Court. 

 Section 4. Exceptions. 

  The City Manager shall, at his discretion, be authorized to issue an exemption to 

any Mobile Food Unit who is operating in an organized civic event, festival, 

celebration, non-profit event or any other event where it is deemed as being in the 

public’s interest in order to exempt the operator of the Mobile Food Unit from 

business license fees and permitting requirements; however, all operators are still 

responsible for the collection and remittance of sales taxes associated with the sale of 

said inventory, as well as inspection of food preparation facilities by the Fire Marshal. 

 Section 5.  Severability. 

  If any part, section or subdivision of this resolution shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair 

the remainder of this resolution, which shall continue in full force and effect 

notwithstanding such holding. 

 Section 6.  Effective Date: 

  This Ordinance Number 2502 shall become effective August 1, 2014 following 

adoption and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law. 

 DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2502 
Page 5 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance Number 2502 is a true and correct copy of 
such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 7th 
day of July 14, 2014, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 
Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4603 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR THERMAL IMAGING 
CAMERAS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills invited bids for thermal imagining cameras for 

the Vestavia Hills Fire Department; and 

 WHEREAS, bids were received on July 8, 2014 and read aloud publicly with the results 

tabulated and detailed in a memorandum to the City Manager from the Fire Chief dated July 9, 

2014, a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A” attached and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 4603; and 

 WHEREAS, the above-described memorandum recommends the acceptance of Argus 

Thermal Imaging bid based on the bid information obtained and citing the fact that this was the 

lowest bid with no exceptions to bid specifications; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council agree it is in the best public interest to accept 

said bid. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid package submitted by Argus Thermal Imaging  is hereby accepted as presented; 

and 

2. This Resolution Number 4603 shall become effective upon adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



BID SUMMARY 
 

BID-2014-04 
 
BID:   Thermal Imaging Cameras and Extra Chargers 
 
BID OPENED: July 8, 2014  
   2:00 PM 
 
PEOPLE PRESENT FOR BID OPENING 

1. Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
2. Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
3. Ryan Farrell, VH Fire Department 
4. Rita Hosmer, VH Finance Department 
5. Tommy Johnson; Argus Cameras 

 
BIDDERS: 
 

1. Argus Cameras:  
a. Camera A - $6,499.00; no exceptions 
b. Camera B - $6,128.00 each; no exceptions 
c. Charger - $463 each; no exceptions 

2. Kenco Fire Equipment 
a. Camera A - $3,947 each with exceptions 
b. Camera B - $3,822.00 each with exceptions 
c. Chargers  - $3,822.00 each  

3. Mitchell and Associates 
a. Camera A - $4,755.00 each with exceptions 
b. Camera B - $4,755.00 each with exceptions 
c. Chargers - $1,950.00 each 

4. NAFECO – No Bid 
5. Sunbelt Fire Equipment – No Bid 

 
 

Resolution No. 4603 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4603 - Exhibit A



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4604 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 4599 TO ALLOW FOR 
LIBRARY GRANT FUNDING TO PARTIALLY FUND CONSTRUCTION 
OF ADDITIONAL PARKING FOR THE LIBRARY IN THE FOREST 

 
 WHEREAS, on June 9, 2014, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills adopted and 

approved Resolution Number 4599 to allow expenditure of grant funding from the Public School 

and College Authority (“PSCA”) to fund construction of an ADA compliant ramp and/or 

additional technology for the Library; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has received bids for construction of a parking lot adjacent to the 

Library in the Forest in order to provide additional parking for the Library; and 

 WHEREAS, construction costs have exceeded original estimates and the City Manager 

has recommended that $150,000 of the PSCA awarded grant be utilized to assist in funding the 

construction of the parking lot in lieu of an ADA compliant ramp or additional technology; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council find it is in the best public interest to redirect a 

portion of the PSCA in an amount not to exceed $150,000 for construction of the parking lot 

adjacent to the Library in the Forest. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to utilize $150,000 of the PSCA grant for 

construction of a parking lot adjacent to the Library in the Forest; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4604 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4606 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH THE 
VESTAVIA HILLS BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR DEVELOPMENT OF 
THE SCHOOL PARCEL AT PATCHWORK FARMS 

 
 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Board of Education (“Board”) owns 22.19 acres of the 

development known as Patchwork Farms; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills (“City”) has retained Daniel Realty Company, 

LLC, an Alabama limited liability company (“Daniel”) to act as the master developer and broker 

for the endeavor; and 

 WHEREAS, said agreement is marked as “Exhibit A” and is attached and incorporated 

into this Resolution Number 4606 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the agreement and recommended 

acceptance; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council find it is in the best public interest to accept 

the City Manager’s recommendation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver said 

agreement with the Vestavia Hills Board of Education; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4606 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



 

 1 
02956388.2  

AGREEMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE 
 

THIS AGREEMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of 
July ______, 2014 (the “Effective Date”) by and between THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE 
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA (“Seller”), and CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, an Alabama municipal corporation (“Purchaser”). 
 

WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of a certain parcel of real estate located in Jefferson County, 
Alabama, which is comprised of approximately 22.19 acres and which is more fully described on Exhibit 
A attached hereto and made a part hereof (said parcel of land, together with all improvements thereon and 
all rights, including appurtenances pertaining thereto, is hereinafter referred to as the “Property”);  

 
WHEREAS, the Property is a part of the proposed Patchwork Farms mixed use development 

(“Patchwork Farms”), and in furtherance of the development of Patchwork Farms, Purchaser and Daniel 
Realty Company, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company (“Daniel”), have entered into that certain 
Master Development and Brokerage Services Agreement dated April 30, 2014 (the “Patchwork 
Development Agreement”); and 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with its efforts to develop Patchwork Farms, Seller desires to sell, 
and Purchaser desires to purchase, the Property. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 
1. Purchase and Sale.  For and in consideration of One and No/100 Dollars ($1.00) in hand 

paid by Purchaser to Seller and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged by Seller, Seller agrees to sell, and Purchaser agrees to purchase, all (and 
not less than all) of the Property for the Purchase Price (as defined below) and on the terms and 
conditions hereinafter set forth.   
 

2.  Purchase Price.  The purchase price for all of the Property shall be Three Million Four 
Hundred Eighty-Three Thousand Eight Hundred Sixty-Eight and 12/100 Dollars ($3,483,868.12) (the 
“Purchase Price”).  The Purchase Price shall be paid to Seller in cash at Closing, subject to the 
adjustments and prorations set forth below. 

 
3.  Closing. 
 

(a) Subject to the terms and provisions of Section 3(b) below, the consummation of 
the sale by Seller and the purchase by Purchaser of the Property (the “Closing”) shall take place at the 
offices of Purchaser, 513 Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 at 10:00 a.m. Central 
Standard/Daylight Savings Time on the date selected by Purchaser on or before one hundred eighty (180) 
days following the Effective Date (the “Closing Date”). 

 
(b) Purchaser shall have the right to extend the Closing Date for three (3) additional 

six (6) month periods each  (collectively, the “Extensions”) as follows: 
 

(i) Purchaser may extend the Closing Date for an additional 180-day period 
(thereby extending the Closing Date to the date which is 360 days following the Effective Date 
(the “First Extended Closing Date”)) by (1) providing Seller with written notice of its election to 
extend the Closing Date on or before the initial Closing Date and (2) remitting to Seller the 
additional sum of Twenty-Five Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($25,000.00) (the “First Extension 
Fee”); 

Exhibit A- Resolution No. 4606



 

 2 
02956388.2  

(ii) Purchaser may extend the Closing Date, as extended to the First 
Extended Closing Date, for an additional 180-day period (thereby extending the Closing Date to 
the date which is 540 days following the Effective Date (the “Second Extended Closing Date”)) 
by (1) providing Seller with written notice of its election to extend the Closing Date on or before 
the First Extended Closing Date and (2) remitting to Seller the additional sum of Twenty-Five 
Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($25,000.00) (the “Second Extension Fee”); and 

 
(iii) Purchaser may extend the Closing Date, as extended to the Second 

Extended Closing Date, for an additional 180-day period (thereby extending the Closing Date to 
the date which is 720 days following the Effective Date) by (1) providing Seller with written 
notice of its election to extend the Closing Date on or before the Second Extended Closing Date 
and (2) remitting to Seller the additional sum of Twenty-Five Thousand and No/100 Dollars 
($25,000.00) (the “Third Extension Fee”). 
 

(c) Purchaser shall provide to Seller at least five (5) days prior written notice of the 
Closing Date selected by Seller for the Closing.  To the extent paid by Purchaser to Seller, the First 
Extension Fee, the Second Extension Fee and the Third Extension Fee (collectively, the “Extension 
Fees”) shall be applied to the Purchase Price payable by Purchaser to Seller  at the Closing.   

 
(d) In the event Purchaser fails to timely exercise any of the Extensions and deposit 

the applicable Extension Fees with Seller, Purchaser shall be deemed to have irrevocably elected to cancel 
and terminate this Agreement in which event all Extension Fees, if any, previously deposited by 
Purchaser with Seller shall be retained by Seller and except for any indemnification and other obligations 
of Purchaser under this Agreement which expressly survive the termination of this Agreement, neither 
party shall have any further obligations or liabilities to the other hereunder. 
 

4. Master Development Rights. 
 
Seller shall have the right to approve the master plan (the “Master Plan”) to be developed for 

Patchwork Farms, which shall include appropriate limits on density, land use and related restrictions, and 
will be submitted to Purchaser and Seller for approval.  The Closing is expressly conditioned upon the 
following: (i) the Master Plan must been completed and approved by the Purchaser and Seller and (ii) 
restrictive covenants approved by Seller and consistent with the provisions of the Master Plan must have 
been recorded encumbering all of the property comprising Patchwork Farms, either through a separate 
document or an amendment to The Patchwork Farm Commercial Declaration of Covenants, Conditions 
and Restrictions dated April 4, 2012 and recorded in Bk:  LR201212, Page 19387 in the Office of the 
Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama (the “Declaration”).  With the approval of Seller, the 
Declaration shall be amended to add the Property to the terms and provisions thereof and shall be the 
form of the restrictive covenants for the Patchwork Farms (other than the five (5) single-family lots within 
Patchwork Farms which Purchaser has previously sold to a third party purchaser and which are subject to 
separate restrictive covenants).  Purchaser and Seller agree to cooperate to facilitate the adoption of any 
amendments or modifications as may be necessary to the current PUD zoning ordinance for Patchwork 
Farms and the related restrictive covenants required to support the development of the approved Master 
Plan.   

 
5. Other Opportunities; Right of First Refusal. 
 
(a) Seller may, at any time prior to the Closing, accept a bona fide offer from a third party to 

purchase the Property, on such terms as it shall consider appropriate in its sole discretion (the transfer 
contemplated by such an acceptance being herein referred to as a “Proposed Sale”). 
 

Exhibit A- Resolution No. 4606



 

 3 
02956388.2  

(b) If Seller receives a bona fide offer for a Proposed Sale that it intends to accept, Seller 
shall first give Purchaser written notice (a “Right of First Refusal Notice”) of the terms of any Proposed 
Sale.  Purchaser shall have five (5) days after its receipt of the Right of First Refusal Notice to give 
written notice to Seller of its election to either: 
 

(i) Purchase the Property on the terms of the Proposed Sale, including without 
limitation a purchase price equal to the purchase price of the Proposed Sale; or 

 
(ii) Not purchase the Property. 

 
(c) Purchaser shall be deemed to have elected its alternative under subsection (c)(ii) above 

upon its failure to give to Seller written notice of its election under subsection (c)(i) above within such 
five (5) day period, in which case Seller shall be free to consummate the Proposed Sale free and clear of 
this Agreement, and upon such closing, this Agreement shall terminate.   
 
 (d)  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the right of first refusal granted to 
Purchaser shall expire on the date this Agreement expires or is terminated. 

 
6. Notice.  Any notices required of either party under this Agreement shall be delivered in 

person or by a prepaid nationally recognized courier service, addressed to the other party at the address 
given in this Agreement, and the same shall be deemed to have been received on the day it is delivered, or 
on the day of refusal to accept delivery.  Notices required under this Agreement shall be sent to the 
following addresses: 

 
If to Seller: 
 
The Board of Education of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 
1204 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216-2810 
Attention: Superintendent 
  
If to Purchaser: 
 
The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 
513 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
Attention:  City Manager 

 
7. Title; Deed.  At the Closing, Seller agrees to convey the Property to Purchaser by a duly 

executed and acknowledged statutory warranty deed (the “Deed”) which shall be subject to the following 
(collectively, the “Permitted Exceptions”): (i) ad valorem taxes for the then current year, (ii) easements, 
covenants and other encumbrances of record, (iii) the current zoning classification, (iv) mineral and 
mining rights not owned by Seller, and (v) matters that would be disclosed by a current survey of the 
Property.   

 
8. Default.   

 
(a) In the event that Seller shall fail to consummate the transaction as contemplated 

herein for any reason other than Purchaser's default, then Purchaser may, as its sole and exclusive remedy, 
either (i) enforce this Agreement and the purchase and sale transaction contemplated herein by specific 
performance or (ii) terminate this Agreement, whereupon any Extension Fees paid to Seller shall be 

Exhibit A- Resolution No. 4606



 

 4 
02956388.2  

promptly returned to Purchaser, this Agreement shall be deemed canceled and terminated and, except for 
the indemnification and other obligations of Purchaser which expressly survive the termination of this 
Agreement, neither party shall have any further obligation or liability to the other hereunder.  Purchaser 
hereby expressly waives any right to seek or obtain any monetary judgment or damages against Seller in 
the event of any default hereunder by Seller and acknowledges and agrees that no other damages, rights or 
remedies shall be collectible, enforceable or available to Purchaser.   

 
(b) If, at any time after the expiration of the Inspection Period, Purchaser shall fail to 

perform its obligation to close the transaction contemplated herein for any reason other than Seller's 
default, then any Extension Fees, if any, paid by Purchaser to Seller  shall be retained by Seller as 
liquidated damages in which event this Agreement shall automatically be deemed terminated and 
canceled and, except for the indemnification and other obligations of Purchaser which expressly survive 
the termination of this Agreement, neither party shall have any further obligation or liability to the other 
hereunder. Because of the difficulty, inconvenience and uncertainty of ascertaining actual damages, no 
other damages, rights or remedies shall in any case be collectible, enforceable or available to Seller and 
Seller agrees to accept and retain any Extension Fees, if any, paid to Seller by Purchaser as its total 
damages and relief hereunder in the event Purchaser fails to close the purchase and sale transaction 
contemplated herein. 
 

9. Intentionally Deleted. 
 

10. Taxes.  The Property is exempt from ad valorem taxes and there shall be no proration of 
ad valorem taxes for the Property at the Closing. 
 

11. Condition of Property; Property Purchased “As-Is”.  The Property shall be sold and 
conveyed “as is” and “with all faults”, and Seller has not made, does not make, and hereby disclaims any 
and all express or implied representations and warranties regarding or relating to the condition, suitability 
for any particular purpose, susceptibility to flooding, value, marketability, zoning of the Property, or with 
respect to use and occupancy restrictions, compliance with environmental laws and laws and regulations 
relating to hazardous substances, toxic wastes and underground storage tanks, and all legal requirements 
affecting or relating to the Property.  Purchaser acknowledges that (i) Purchaser is not relying on any 
warranties or representations with respect to the physical condition of the Property or with respect to the 
operations of the Property; and (ii) Purchaser is not relying on any information provided by Seller, and 
that Purchaser has made, or will make prior to the Closing Date, an independent investigation of all 
matters relating to the Property and the ownership and operation of the Property.  The terms and 
covenants of this Section 11 shall survive the Closing or any termination of this Agreement.  

   
12. Transfer Costs; Title Insurance.  Each party shall pay its respective attorney’s fees.  

Purchaser shall pay for the cost of obtaining an owner’s title insurance policy, the cost of an ALTA 
survey, if required by Purchaser, and all recording and documentary fees and taxes resulting from the 
conveyance of the Property.  
 

13. Assignment.  Purchaser may not assign this Agreement or any of its rights hereunder 
without the express written consent of Seller.  Any assignment in violation of the restriction on 
assignment in this Section 13 shall be void and of no force and effect.  Notwithstanding the forgoing, 
Purchaser may assign all of its rights hereunder to Daniel or a wholly owned subsidiary of Daniel.  In no 
event shall Purchaser be released from its duties and obligations hereunder unless expressly released in 
writing by Seller. 

 
14. Inspection.  Upon execution of this Agreement, Purchaser is hereby granted the right to 

enter onto the Property from time to time for the purpose of inspecting the Property; provided, however, 

Exhibit A- Resolution No. 4606



 

 5 
02956388.2  

that Purchaser shall conduct no invasive testing, investigations, or evaluations on the Property without the 
prior written consent of Seller.  In performing its inspections, Purchaser agrees not to damage the 
Property and shall indemnify, defend and hold Seller, its successors, assigns, officers, employees and 
agents, harmless from and against any cost, claim, loss, liability, judgment, lien or other expense, 
including attorney fees and for bodily injury, personal injury, death or property damage, which shall arise 
as a consequence of Purchaser’s exercise of its rights under this Agreement.  This indemnity shall survive 
the Closing or the termination of this Agreement.  In the event Purchaser fails to close the transaction 
contemplated herein for any reason, upon request by Seller, Purchaser shall furnish, at no cost to Seller, 
copies of all surveys, soil test results, engineering, environmental and other studies and reports relating to 
Purchaser’s inspections of the Property, which obligation shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

 
15. Authority.  Seller represents and warrants, to and for the benefit of Purchaser that Seller 

has the authority and power to convey the Property in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and 
the individuals signing this Agreement and all documents executed or to be executed by Seller are and 
shall be duly authorized to sign the same on Seller’s behalf and bind Seller thereto.  
 

16. Brokerage; Real Estate Commissions.  Purchaser shall pay all real estate commissions, 
broker’s commissions, and other related fees and expenses owing to Daniel under the Patchwork 
Development Agreement, if any, resulting from the Closing of the transaction contemplated by this 
Agreement.  Seller shall pay to Daniel, at Closing, a closing fee of One Hundred Fifty Thousand and 
No/100 Dollars ($150,000) if and only if the Closing occurs between Seller and Purchaser pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement.  Purchaser and Seller each represent and warrant to the other that, except for 
Daniel, such party has dealt with no other broker, agent or other person in connection with this transaction 
and that no broker, agent or other person other than the foregoing brought about this transaction, and 
Purchaser and Seller agree to indemnify and hold the other party harmless from and against any claim by 
any other broker, agent or other person claiming a commission or other form of compensation by virtue of 
having dealt with such party with regard to this transaction. The terms and covenants of this Section 16 
shall survive the Closing or any termination of this Agreement. 
 

17. Governing Law.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be construed, 
interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama. 

 
18. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties 

with respect to the transactions provided for herein, and the parties hereto agree that no other 
representations have been made by either party. 
 

19. Time is of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and of the 
performance of each and every covenant contained herein.  
 

20. Successors and Assigns.  This agreement shall be binding upon the personal 
representatives, executors, administrators, heirs and assigns of Seller, and inure to the personal 
representatives, executors, administrators, heirs and assigns of Purchaser. 

 
21. Possession.  Possession of the Property shall be given on the Closing Date, free of any 

tenancy, leases or rights of occupancy other than any such rights arising out of the Permitted Exceptions. 

Exhibit A- Resolution No. 4606



 

 6 
02956388.2  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed or caused this Agreement to be executed 
by their duly authorized representative as of the Effective Date. 

 
 

SELLER: 
 

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE CITY OF  
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 
 
 
By:        
Name:        
Its:        
 
 
 
 
By:        
Name:        
Its:        
 
 
 
PURCHASER: 

 
      THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 
By:        
Name:        
Its:        
 
 

 
 
 

Exhibit A- Resolution No. 4606



 

02956388.2 A-1 
02945117.2  

EXHIBIT A 
 

(Legal Description of Property) 
 

 

 

Exhibit A- Resolution No. 4606



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4605 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH GOODWYN MILLS AND 
CAWOOD FOR PRELIMINARY GEOTECHNICAL WORK AT WALD 
PARK 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager has a proposal for preliminary geotechnical work at Wald 

Park – Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Services for an amount estimated at $11,500, a 

copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A” and is attached and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 4605 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the proposal and recommended acceptance 

in an amount not to exceed $11,500; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council find it is in the best public interest to accept 

the City Manager’s recommendation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver an agreement with 

Goodwyn Mills and Cawood for preliminary geotechnical work at Wald Park- Phase I 

Environmental Site Assessment in an amount not to exceed $11,500; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4605 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4605



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4605



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4605



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4605



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4605



Ordinance Number 2503 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2503 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF A PARCEL OF PROPERTY FROM 
JEFFERSON COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia 

Hills R-1;  

1836 Shades Crest Road 
Bradshaw Family, LLC, Owner(s) 

 
More Particularly Described as Follows: 
 

PARCEL I: 
A lot or parcel of Land located in the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 24, 
Township 18 South, Range 3 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, 
Birmingham Division, being Tract #17, and described as:  Begin at the 
Northwest corner of the Northwest quarter of the Southwest quarter of 
Section 19, Township 18 South, Range 2 West; thence in a Southerly 
direction along the West boundary of said 1/4·1/4 section a distance of 
385.60 feet; thence turning an angle of 52°00' to the right in a 
Southwesterly direction a distance of 1047.88 feet; thence turning an angle 
of 10°00' to the left in a Southwesterly direction of 667.5 feet; thence turn 
an angle of 6°25' to the left in a Southwesterly direction a distance of 
614.84 feet; thence turning an angle of 16°15' to the right in a 
Southwesterly direction a distance of 248.5 feet; thence turning an angle 
of 16°12'30" to the left in a Southwesterly direction a distance of 109.30 
feet to point of beginning of land herein described; with this as a 
beginning point; thence turning an angle of 114°12'29" and run in a 
Southeasterly direction for a measured distance of 401.84 feet to an 
existing 1/2" rebar being on the Northwest right of way line of Shades 
Crest Road; thence turn an angle to the right of 127°16'41" and run in a 
Southwesterly direction along the Northwest right of way line of said 
Shades Crest Road for a distance of 61.97 feet to an existing iron rebar set 
by Weygand and being the point of beginning of a curve, said curve being 



Ordinance Number 2503 
Page 2 

 
concave in a Northwesterly direction and having a central angle of 35°44' 
and a radius of 452.50 feet; thence turn an angle to the right and run in a 
Southwesterly and Westerly direction along the arc of said curve for a 
distance of 282.21 feet to an existing iron rebar set by Weygand and being 
the point of ending of said curve; thence run in a Westerly direction along 
the North right of way line of Shades Crest Road and along a line tangent 
to the end of said curve for a distance of 94.90 feet to an existing iron 
rebar set by Weygand; thence turn an angle to the right of 900 and run in a 
Northerly direction for a distance of 5.0 feet to an existing iron rebar set 
by Weygand and still being on the North right of way line of Shades Crest 
Road; thence turn an angle to the left of 90° and run in a Westerly 
direction along the North right of way line of said Shades Crest Road for a 
distance of 40.50 feet to an existing cross cut in a driveway and the point 
of beginning of a curve, said latest curve being concave in a Southerly 
direction and having a central angle of 8°13'29" and a radius of 507.52 
feet; thence turn an angle to the left and run in a Westerly direction along 
the arc of said curve for a distance of 72.85 feet to an existing iron rebar 
set by Weygand; thence turn an angle to the right (95°22'33" from the 
chord of last mentioned curve) and run in a Northerly direction for a 
distance of 30.88 feet to an existing 2" capped iron pipe; thence turn an 
angle to the right of 32°12'13" and run in a Northeasterly direction for a 
distance of 249.50 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning. 
 
PARCEL II: 
That part of the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 24, Township 18, South, 
Range 3 West, more particularly described as follows:  Begin at the 
Northeast corner of the NE 1/4 of SE 1/4 of said Section 24, thence in a 
Southerly direction along the East boundary of said quarter-quarter section 
386.60 feet; thence turn an angle of 52°00' to the right in a Southwesterly 
direction 1047.88 feet; thence turning an angle of 10°00' to the left in a 
Southwesterly direction 667.5 feet; thence turning an angle of 8°25' to the 
left in a Southwesterly direction 614.84 feet; thence turning an angle of 
16°15' to the right in a Southwesterly direction 248.50 feet to the most 
Westerly corner of Tract No. 16, as conveyed by Tennessee Land 
Company to W. B. Crow and J. R. Crow by deed dated the 7th day of 
September, 1943; said most Westerly corner being point of beginning of 
boundary of tract of land herein described; thence turning an angle of 
130°04' to the left in a Southeasterly direction along the Southwest 
boundary of said Tract No. 16,460.9 feet to the Southeast corner thereof; 
thence turning an angle of 126°31' to the right in a Southwesterly direction 
124.43 feet to the most Easterly corner of Tract No. 17, as conveyed by 
Tennessee Land Company to W. B. Crow and J. R. Crow by the above 
mentioned deed; thence turning an angle of 53°29' to the right in a 
Northwesterly direction along the Northeast boundary of said Tract No. 
17,431.1 feet to the Northwest corner thereof; thence turning an angle of 



Ordinance Number 2503 
Page 3 

 
113°51'30" to the right in a Northeasterly direction 109.3 feet to point of 
beginning. 
 
PARCEL III: 
Commence at the Southwest corner of the SW 1/4 of SE 1/4, Section 24, 
Township 18 South, Range 3 West, and run East along the South line of 
said quarter-quarter section a distance of 523.7 feet; thence turn an angle 
of 45°01' to the left and run Northeasterly a distance of 59.8 feet; thence 
turn an angle of 36°48' to the right and run Northeasterly a distance of 202 
feet, more or less, to a point; thence turn an angle of 90°00' to the left and 
run Northwesterly a distance of 30 feet to point of intersection with the 
Northerly right of way line of Shades Crest Road as now located, being 
the point of beginning of herein described property; thence turn an angle 
of 90°00' to the left and run Southwesterly a distance of 43 feet, more or 
less, to the point of beginning of a curve to the left having a central angle 
of 36°48' and a radius of 508.3 feet; thence Southeasterly and along arc of 
said curve a distance of 76 feet, more or less, to point of intersection with 
an extension of the Easterly property line of the Tennessee Coal &Iron 
Division in the SW 1/4 of SE 1/4, Section 24; thence Northwesterly and 
along said extended property line a distance of 36 feet, more or less, to 
point of intersection with the Northerly right of way line of said Shades 
Crest Road; thence Easterly and Southeasterly along said Northerly right 
of way line a distance of 124 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning. 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2503 
Page 4 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2503 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordiinance Number
P
r 2503 
Page 5 

 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JUNE 12, 2014 
 

• CASE:  P-0614-25 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  1836 Shades Crest Rd. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Bradshaw Family, LLC, 4154 Crosshaven Dr. Vestavia 
Hills, AL 35243 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  This particular property was annexed in 1999 when 

Mrs. Moon had just retired and we had Lou Falkenberry, Assistant to the Mayor as 
“Acting” City Clerk.  They completed the annexation but didn’t know about the 
requirement to rezone to the compatible zoning.  The house was eventually sold and 
was demolished and the land has been on the market for a while.  The applicant 
wishes to sell the property and build 2 homes on it, however, City will not allow it 
until the lot(s) rezone to the City zoning and builds under City regulations and 
restrictions.  This is something that is standard in all zonings.  He has ample property 
to build 2 homes and meet all aspects of the City’s zoning code which exceeds the 
restrictions in the County’s zoning code. A subdivision plat will follow in the coming 
months. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the plan for neighborhood development. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 



 2

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to approve Rezoning of 1836 Shades Crest Rd. from 
Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 For Residential Use. Second was by Mr. Goodwin. 
Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes          
Mrs. Fancher – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Motion carried. 

 



Ordinance Number 2504 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2504 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE 
APPROVAL FOR THE INTENDED PURPOSE OF RAISING AND 
HOUSING HENS 

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010 the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 2331 entitled the Vestavia Hills 

Zoning Code and establishing a conditional use approval for certain uses not permissible 

by right in zoning classifications; and 

 WHEREAS, on April 25, 2014, William Roth submitted an application for 

conditional use approval to raise a maximum of twelve (12) hens on his property located 

at 2564 Altadena Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, the property located at 2564 Altadena Road is presently zoned 

Vestavia Hills E-2 (low density residential district); and 

 WHEREAS, Table 5 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code sets forth the permissible 

uses within an E-2 classification; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission at its regular 

meeting of June 12, 2014 voted to recommend approval of the request as presented, with 

certain stipulations by a vote of six (6) in favor and zero (0) against; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated April 25, 2014 is attached and 

hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2504. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for William Roth, for use of the 

property located at 2564 Altadena Road to raise and house chickens with the 

following conditions: 

(1) Maximum of twelve (12) hens may be allowed at any time;  

(2) Coop must be permanently placed and shall not be moved to other 

portions of the property;  

(3) No roosters shall occupy the premises at any time;  

(4) Hens and/or eggs shall not be used for a commercial purpose; 



Ordinance Number 2504 
Page 2 

 
(5) This conditional use approval is location and owner specific and if  

Mr. Roth shall ever vacate the premises said conditional use shall be 

considered null and void; 

(6) If Mr. Roth vacates the conditional use by not raising any hens for a 

period of more than one (1) year, said conditional use is considered 

null and void; and 

(7) If Mr. Roth experiences any predators lured by said hens, he shall 

notify the Vestavia Hills Police Department immediately. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as Acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2504 is a true 
and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



 
 
 

Ordinancce Number 250
Page

04 
e 3 

 

  



Ordinance No. 2504 - Application



Ordinance No. 2504 - Application



Ordinance No. 2504 - Application



Ordinance No. 2504 - Application



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JUNE 12, 2014 
 

 
• CASE:  P-0614-22 

 
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Conditional Use approval for chickens 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2564 Altadena Rd. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: William Stanley Roth. 2564 Altadena Rd. Vestavia Hills, 

AL 35243 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Parcel is a 12.27 acre lot with a single family lot on 
Altadena Rd. Applicant seeks up to 12 chickens with a coop. Applicant currently has 
bee hives, which have been there for a number of years  

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the plan for residential uses. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:   
1. No more than twelve (12) hens may be allowed; 
2. Coop must be permanent; 
3. No roosters may be kept; 
4. Hens or eggs may not be used for commercial purposes. 
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 



 2

MOTION:  Motion to recommend approval of Conditional Use Application P-0614-22 for 
urban hens at 2564 Altadena Rd. was made by Mr. Gilchrist with the following conditions: 

1. No more than twelve (12) hens may be allowed; 
2. Coop must be permanent; 
3. No roosters may be kept; 
4. Hens or eggs may not be used for commercial purposes. 

Second was made by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes          
Mrs. Fancher – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Motion carried. 

 



Ordinance Number 2505 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2505 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF A PARCEL OF PROPERTY FROM 
VESTAVIA HILLS R-4 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia 

Hills R-9;  

3790 Poe Drive 
Lot 5 and N ½ of Lot 4, Block 3, Glass 3rd Addition to New Merkle 

Overton Investments LLC, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2505 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2505 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Ordiinance Number
P
r 2505 
Page 3 

 

 







 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JUNE 12, 2014 
 

• CASE:  P-0614-26 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills R-3 to Vestavia Hills R-9 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3790 Poe Dr. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Overton Investments, LLC, 3505 Bent River Rd. 
Birmingham, AL 35216 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Applicant is seeking to build a 2 lot subdivision on Poe 

Dr. in Cahaba Heights. Setbacks for the subdivision would be Front: 20’, Side: 5’, 
Rear: 25’.  There is currently a house on the lot which would be removed. Applicant 
will follow up with a subdivision plat. 

 
• CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN:  The request is consistent with the 

plan for medium density residential. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  Applicant needs to submit drainage and access plans 
for review and approval. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: A/C units must be located in the rear of buildings.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

P&Z Recommendation: 
 
 

MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to approve Rezoning of 4668 Caldwell Mill Rd. 
from Vestavia Hills R-3 to Vestavia Hills R-9 For Residential Use, subject to City Engineer 
approval on drainage and access. Second was by Ms. Fancher. Motion was carried on a roll call; 
vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – no   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes          
Mrs. Fancher – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Motion failed. 

 
 



 



,--r70-0Yr" 

Future Land Use 
I m-lkoritry Itesicknoal 

kalturn-Plensay Stesairntsal 

hoh-lk-nsus Re,kkamal 

011■Vh,{111 	 IrPersgal Comm 

F4-kaitnr..cd 

amikal Mixed 

Planuo.I Musa! L'se 

Elle  414111;64mA 

Parks and t hack Sp., 

-- 7  

I .11)+,1- 

I 	 I 	I 
. 

,_.  I 	 I 	.T 
,2.s. 	 .  
, 	 7 : , 	 . 

I 	..: 	I 	7-: 	I 

	

. 	
, 'r 	/  - -  --  -  -I 	L. _ ______ , 

I 
%,-; 

t 	I 

• 

--J 

0 

Figure 4: Future Land Use Map 

Page 14 



Ordinance Number 2506 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2506 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 14th day of April, 2014, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

4668 Caldwell Mill Road 
See Attached Exhibit A for Legal Description 

Layne and Amy Savoie, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2506 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2506 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
4668 
 
More
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Caldwell M

e particularly

Mill Road 

y described a

E

as follows: 

Exhibit A 

Ordinancce Number 250
Page

06 
e 3 

 

 



Ordinancce Number 250
Page

06 
e 4 

 

 









RLeavings
Text Box
2/12/2014

RLeavings
Text Box
C Brady













Ordinance Number 2507 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2507 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF A PARCEL OF PROPERTY FROM 
JEFFERSON COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia 

Hills R-1;  

4668 Caldwell Mill Road 
See attached “Exhibit A” for Legal Description 

Layne and Amy Savoie, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2507 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2507 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
4
 
M
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

668 Caldwe

More particul

ll Mill Road

larly describ

d 

bed as follow

Exhibit A

ws: 

A 

Ordiinance Number
P
r 2507 
Page 3 

 

 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2507 
Page 4 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JUNE 12, 2014 
 

• CASE:  P-0614-16 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills R-1 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  4668 Caldwell Mill Rd. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: Layne Savoie, 4668 Caldwell Mill Rd. Vestavia Hills, AL 

35243 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
4/14/14. Applicant is requesting the compatible rezoning as part of the annexation 
process. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the plan. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

P&Z Recommendation: 
 
 

MOTION  Mr. Burrell made a motion to approve Rezoning of 4668 Caldwell Mill Rd. from 
Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills R-1For The Purpose Of Annexation. Second was by Mr. 
Brooks. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes          
Mrs. Fancher – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Motion carried. 

 



Ordinance Number 2508 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2508 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 14th day of April, 2014, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2640 Dolly Ridge Road 
See Attached Exhibit A for Legal Description 

Willard and Ruth Bowers, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2508 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2508 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
2640 
 
More
 

Dolly Ridge

e particularly

e Road 

y described a

E

as follows: 

Exhibit A 

Ordinancce Number 250
Page

08 
e 3 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2508 
Page 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 



















Ordinance Number 2509 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2509 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF A PARCEL OF PROPERTY FROM 
JEFFERSON COUNTY E-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS E-2 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia 

Hills E-2;  

2640 Dolly Ridge Road 
See attached “Exhibit A” for Legal Description 

Willard and Ruth Bowers(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2509 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2509 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
2
 
M
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

640 Dolly R

More particul

Ridge Road 

larly describbed as follow

Exhibit A

ws: 

A 

Ordiinance Number
P
r 2509 
Page 3 

 

 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2509 
Page 4 

 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JUNE 12, 2014 
 

• CASE:  P-0614-17 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2640 Dolly Ridge Rd. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: Willard & Ruth Bowers, 4668 Caldwell Mill Rd. Vestavia 

Hills, AL 35243 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
4/14/14. Applicant is requesting the compatible rezoning as part of the annexation 
process. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the plan. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

 
P&Z Recommendation: 
 

MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to approve Rezoning of 2640 Dolly Ridge Rd. from 
Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2 For The Purpose Of Annexation. Second was by Mr. 
Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes          
Mrs. Fancher – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Motion carried. 

 



Ordinance Number 2510 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2510 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 14th day of April, 2014, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2760 Altadena Lake Drive 
Lot 3, Block 5, First Addition; Altadena Valley Fifth Sector 

Lynn Smitherman, Trustee, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2510 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2510 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

Ordinancce Number 251
Page

10 
e 3 

 

 









RLeavings
Text Box
2/12/2014

RLeavings
Text Box
C Brady













Ordinance Number 2511 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2511 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF A PARCEL OF PROPERTY FROM 
JEFFERSON COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia 

Hills R-2;  

2760 Altadena Lake Drive 
Lot 3, Block 5, First Addition, Altadena Valley Fifth Sector 

Lynne Smitherman, Trustee, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2511 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2511 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2511 
Page 3 

 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JUNE 12, 2014 
 

• CASE:  P-0614-18 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2760 Altadena Lake Dr. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: Reid Trust, 2760 Altadena Lake Dr. Vestavia Hills, AL 

35243 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
4/14/14. Applicant is requesting the compatible rezoning as part of the annexation 
process. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the plan. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

P&Z Recommendation: 
 

MOTION  Ms. Fancher made a motion to approve Rezoning of 2760 Altadena Lake Dr. from 
Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 For The Purpose Of Annexation. Second was by Mr. 
Brooks. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes          
Mrs. Fancher – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Motion carried. 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2512 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2512 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 14th day of April, 2014, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3700 Altadena Circle 
Lot 8, Ridge Forest 

Ralph and Alison McCall, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2512 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2512 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

Ordinancce Number 251
Page

12 
e 3 

 

 









RLeavings
Text Box
2/12/2014    C Brady











Ordinance Number 2513 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2513 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF A PARCEL OF PROPERTY FROM 
JEFFERSON COUNTY A-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS A 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County A-1 to 

Vestavia Hills A;  

3700 Altadena Circle 
Lot 8, Ridge Forest 

Ralph and Alison McCall, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2513 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2513 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2513 
Page 3 

 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JUNE 12, 2014 
 

• CASE:  P-0614-20 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County A-1 to Vestavia Hills A 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3700 Altadena Circle   
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: Ralph & Alison McCall, 3700 Altadena Circle  Vestavia 

Hills, AL 35243 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
4/14/14. Applicant is requesting the compatible rezoning as part of the annexation 
process. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the plan. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

 
P&Z Recommendation: 
 

MOTION  Mr. Burrell made a motion to approve Rezoning of 3700 Altadena Circle from 
Jefferson County A-1 to Vestavia Hills A For The Purpose Of Annexation. Second was by Mr. 
Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes          
Mrs. Fancher – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Motion carried. 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2514 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2514 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 14th day of April, 2014, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3548 Valley Circle 
Lot 12, Block 3, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition 

Benjamin and Carol Byrket 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2514 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2514 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

Ordinancce Number 251
Page

14 
e 3 

 

 









RLeavings
Text Box
2/12/2014

RLeavings
Text Box
C Brady













Ordinance Number 2515 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2515 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF A PARCEL OF PROPERTY FROM 
JEFFERSON COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia 

Hills R-2;  

3548 Valley Circle 
Lot 12, Block 3, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition 

Benjamin and Carol Byrket 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2515 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2515 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2515 
Page 3 

 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JUNE 12, 2014 
 

• CASE:  P-0614-19 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3548 Valley Circle   
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: Benjamin Byrket, 3548 Valley Circle  Vestavia Hills, AL 

35243 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
4/14/14. Applicant is requesting the compatible rezoning as part of the annexation 
process. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the plan. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

P&Z Recommendation  
 
MOTION  Mr. Goodwin made a motion to approve Rezoning of 3548 Valley Circle from 
Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 For The Purpose Of Annexation. Second was by Mr. 
Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes          
Mrs. Fancher – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Motion carried. 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2516 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2516 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 14th day of April, 2014, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2400 Rocky Ridge Road 
Lot 105, Buckhead, 4th Sector 

Michael and Donya Rumore, Owners 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2516 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2516 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

Ordinancce Number 251
Page

16 
e 3 

 

 









RLeavings
Text Box
2/12/2014

RLeavings
Text Box
C Brady















Ordinance Number 2517 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2517 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF A PARCEL OF PROPERTY FROM 
JEFFERSON COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia 

Hills R-1;  

2400 Rocky Ridge Road 
Lot 105, Buckhead, 4th Sector 

Michael and Donya Rumore, Owners 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2517 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2517 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2517 
Page 3 

 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JUNE 12, 2014 
 

• CASE:  P-0614-21 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2400 Rocky Ridge Rd   
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: Michael & Donna Rumore, 2400 Rocky Ridge Rd  

Vestavia Hills, AL 35243 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
4/14/14. Applicant is requesting the compatible rezoning as part of the annexation 
process. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the plan. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

P&Z Recommendation: 
 

MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to approve Rezoning of 2400 Rocky Ridge Rd. from 
Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 For The Purpose Of Annexation. Second was by Mr. 
Brooks. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes          
Mrs. Fancher – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Motion carried. 

 



Ordinance Number 2518 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2518 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 14th day of April, 2014, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2835 Acton Road 
Lot 1, Adams Resurvey 

Brantley P. Bowden, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2518 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2518 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2518 
Page 3 

 
 
 

 
 
 









RLeavings
Text Box
2/12/14

RLeavings
Text Box
C Brady















Ordinance Number 2519 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2519 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF A PARCEL OF PROPERTY FROM 
JEFFERSON COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia 

Hills R-2;  

2835 Acton Road 
Lot 1, Adams Resurvey 

Brantley P. Bowden, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2519 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2519 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2519 
Page 3 

 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JUNE 12, 2014 
 

• CASE:  P-0614-23 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2835 Acton Rd.   
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: Bentley Bowden, 2835 Acton Rd. Vestavia Hills, AL 

35243 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
4/14/14. Applicant is requesting the compatible rezoning as part of the annexation 
process. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the plan. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

P&Z Recommendation: 
 

MOTION  Mr. Goodwin made a motion to approve Rezoning of 2835 Acton Rd.  from 
Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 For The Purpose Of Annexation. Second was by Mr. 
Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes          
Mrs. Fancher – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Motion carried. 

 



Ordinance Number 2520 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2520 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 14th day of April, 2014, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2468 Kenvil Circle 
Lot 42, Buckhead, 2nd Sector 

Tara Adams 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2520 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2520 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

Ordinancce Number 252
Page

20 
e 3 

 

 









RLeavings
Text Box
2/12/2014

RLeavings
Text Box
C Brady











Ordinance Number 2521 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2521 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF A PARCEL OF PROPERTY FROM 
JEFFERSON COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia 

Hills R-1;  

2468 Kenvil Circle 
Lot 42, Buckhead, 2nd Sector 

Tara Adams 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2521 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2521 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of July, 2014 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2521 
Page 3 

 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JUNE 12, 2014 
 

• CASE:  P-0614-24 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2468 Kenvil Circle 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Tara Adams, 2468 Kenvil Circle Vestavia Hills, AL 35243 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
4/14/14. Applicant is requesting the compatible rezoning as part of the annexation 
process. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the plan. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

 
P&Z Recommendation: 

 
MOTION  Mr. Brooks made a motion to approve Rezoning of 2468 Kenvil Circle from 
Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 For The Purpose Of Annexation. Second was by Mr. 
Goodwin. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes          
Mrs. Fancher – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Motion carried. 

 


	2014_0714CC_A
	2014_0619CC_M ws
	2014_0623CC_M
	Ordinance 2502
	Resolution 4603
	Resolution 4604
	Resolution 4606
	Resolution 4605
	Ordinance 2503
	Ordinance 2504
	Ordinance 2505
	Ordinance 2506
	Ordinance 2507
	Ordinance 2508
	Ordinance 2509
	Ordinance 2510
	Ordinance 2511
	Ordinance 2512
	Ordinance 2513
	Ordinance 2514
	Ordinance 2515
	Ordinance 2516
	Ordinance 2517
	Ordinance 2518
	Ordinance 2519
	Ordinance 2520
	Ordinance 2521



